UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549
FORM 8-K/A
Amendment No. 1

CURRENT REPORT
PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
Date of Report (Date of earliest event reported): February 27, 2018
Petrolia Energy Corporation
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
Texas
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation)

000-52690
(Commission File Number)

86-1061005
(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

710 N. Post Oak Rd., Ste. 512, Houston, Texas
(Address of principal executive offices)

77024
(Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: 832-941-0011
Check the appropriate box below if the Form 8-K filing is intended to simultaneously satisfy the filing obligation of the registrant under
any of the following provisions:
☐

Written communications pursuant to Rule 425 under the Securities Act (17CFR 230.425)

☐

Soliciting material pursuant to Rule 14a-12 under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14a-12)

☐

Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 14d-2(b) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14d-2(b))

☐

Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 13e-4(c) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.13e-4(c))

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an emerging growth company as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act of 1933
(§230.405 of this chapter) or Rule 12b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (§240.12b-2 of this chapter).
Emerging growth company ☐
If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying
with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. ☐

EXPLANATORY NOTE
On February 28, 2018, Petrolia Energy Corporation (“Petrolia” or the “Company”) filed a Current Report on Form 8-K (the
“Original Report”) to report, among other things, the closing, on February 27, 2018, of the transactions contemplated by the November 30,
2017, Arrangement Agreement (the “Agreement”) entered into between the Company and Bow Energy Ltd (“Bow”), pursuant to which the
Company acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares of Bow pursuant to a “plan of arrangement” (the “Arrangement”) under section
193 of the Business Corporations Act (Alberta) (the “Acquisition”).
Under the terms of the Arrangement, Bow shareholders are deemed to have received 1.15 Petrolia common stock shares for each
share of common stock of Bow which they held. A total of 106,156,712 shares of the Company’s common stock were issued to the Bow
shareholders as a result of the Arrangement, plus additional shares in connection with the rounding described below. The Arrangement
provided that no fractional shares would be issued in connection with the Arrangement, and instead, each Bow shareholder otherwise
entitled to a fractional interest would receive the nearest whole number of Company shares. For example, where such fractional interest is
greater than or equal to 0.5, the number of shares to be issued would be rounded up to the nearest whole number and where such fractional
interest is less than 0.5, the number of shares to be issued would be rounded down to the nearest whole number. In calculating such
fractional interests, all shares issuable in the name of or beneficially held by each Bow shareholder or their nominee as a result of the
Arrangement shall be aggregated.
The Company also assumed all of the outstanding warrants to purchase shares of common stock of Bow (the “Bow Warrants”) and
certain options to purchase shares of common stock of Bow (the “Bow Options”) in connection with the Arrangement (i.e., each
warrant/option to purchase one (1) share of Bow represents the right to purchase one (1) share of the Company following the closing).
The Company stated in the Original Report that it intended to file the required financial statements and pro forma financial
information relating to the Bow Acquisition within 71 days from the date that such report was required to be filed, provided that the
Company was unable to timely complete the preparation of such financial statements within such 71 day period. By this Amendment No. 1
to the Original Report, the Company is amending and restating (a) Item 9.01 thereof to include the required financial statements and pro
forma financial information; and (b) Item 2.01 thereof to clarify that Ilyas Chaudhary, the father of Zel C. Khan, the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer, owns and controls BSIH Ltd. (“BSIH”) which is a significant shareholder of the Company; and that prior to the
acquisition of Bow Energy Ltd (“Bow”) as described below, BSIH, and as a result of his ownership and control of BSIH, Mr. Chaudhary,
controlled Bow. This Current Report on Form 8-K does not amend or modify the Original Report, except as to Items 2.01 and 9.01.
Item 2.01 Completion of Acquisition or Disposition of Assets.
Closing of Bow Energy Ltd. Acquisition
As previously disclosed, on November 30, 2017, Petrolia Energy Corporation (“Petrolia” or the “Company”) signed an
Arrangement Agreement (the “Agreement”) to acquire all of the issued and outstanding shares in Bow Energy Ltd (“Bow”), which was
listed on the TSX Venture Exchange under the symbol ONG.V., with corporate offices located in Calgary, Alberta, Canada and Jakarta,
Indonesia, pursuant to a “plan of arrangement” (the “Arrangement”) under section 193 of the Business Corporations Act (Alberta) (the
“Acquisition”). The Arrangement Agreement included customary representations, warranties and covenants of the parties.
On February 27, 2018, the Acquisition closed and Petrolia acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares of capital stock of
Bow (each a “Bow Share”). The Agreement and the Arrangement was approved by an overwhelming majority of more than 99% of the
votes cast by Bow’s shareholders at a special meeting of shareholders of Bow held on February 21, 2018. Final approval of the
Arrangement was granted by the Court of Queen's Bench of Alberta (the “Court”) on February 23, 2018.

Under the terms of the Arrangement, Bow shareholders are deemed to have received 1.15 Petrolia common stock shares for each
Bow Share. A total of 106,156,712 shares of the Company’s common stock were issued to the Bow shareholders as a result of the
Arrangement, plus additional shares in connection with the rounding described below. The Arrangement provided that no fractional shares
would be issued in connection with the Arrangement, and instead, each Bow shareholder otherwise entitled to a fractional interest would
receive the nearest whole number of Company shares. For example, where such fractional interest is greater than or equal to 0.5, the
number of shares to be issued would be rounded up to the nearest whole number and where such fractional interest is less than 0.5, the
number of shares to be issued would be rounded down to the nearest whole number. In calculating such fractional interests, all shares
issuable in the name of or beneficially held by each Bow shareholder or their nominee as a result of the Arrangement shall be aggregated.
The Arrangement provides that any certificate formerly representing Bow common stock not duly surrendered on or before the last
business day prior to the third anniversary of the closing date will cease to represent a claim by, or interest of, any former shareholder of
any kind of nature against Bow or the Company and on such date all consideration or other property to which such former holder was
entitled shall be deemed to have been surrendered to the Company.
The Company also assumed all of the outstanding warrants to purchase shares of common stock of Bow (the “Bow Warrants”) and
certain options to purchase shares of common stock of Bow (the “Bow Options”) in connection with the Arrangement (i.e., each
warrant/option to purchase one (1) share of Bow represents the right to purchase one (1) share of the Company following the closing).
Bow’s key assets included South Block A PSC - 44.48% working interest, Bohorok PSC – 50% working interest, Bohorok Deep
JSA – 20.25% working interest, Palmerah Baru – 54% working interest, MNK Palmerah – 69.36% working interest, Mahato PSC – 20%
working interest.
Ilyas Chaudhary, the father of Zel C. Khan, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, owns and controls BSIH Ltd. (“BSIH”)
which is a significant shareholder of the Company; and prior to the acquisition of Bow Energy Ltd (“Bow”) as described below, BSIH, and
as a result of his ownership and control of BSIH, Mr. Chaudhary, controlled Bow at the time of the acquisition.
The foregoing descriptions of the Agreement do not purport to be complete and are qualified in their entirety by reference to the
Agreement, a copy of which is incorporated by reference hereto as Exhibit 10.1, and incorporated in this Item 2.01 by reference.
Item 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits
(a) Financial Statements of business Acquired
(1) The Audited Consolidated Statements of Financial Position of Bow Energy Ltd. as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, Audited
Consolidated Statement of Loss and Comprehensive Loss for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, Audited Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 and Audited Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, and the notes thereto, are filed as Exhibit 99.1 to this Form 8-K/A.
(2) The Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Financial Position of Bow Energy Ltd. as of December 31, 2017 and March 31,
2017, Unaudited Consolidated Statement of Loss and Comprehensive Loss for the three and nine months ended December 31,
2017 and 2016, Unaudited Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the three and nine months ended December 31, 2017
and 2016 and Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three and nine months ended December 31, 2017 and
2016, and the notes thereto, are filed as Exhibit 99.2 to this Form 8-K/A.
(b) Pro Forma Financial Information

The Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Balance Sheet of Petrolia Energy Corporation as of December 31, 2017 and
Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2017, are filed as Exhibit 99.3
to this Form 8-K/A.
(d) Exhibits
Exhibit No. Description
99.1

99.2

99.3

Audited Consolidated Statements of Financial Position of Bow Energy Ltd. as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, Audited
Consolidated Statement of Loss and Comprehensive Loss for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, Audited Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 and Audited Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, and the notes thereto
Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Financial Position of Bow Energy Ltd. as of December 31, 2017 and March 31, 2017,
Unaudited Consolidated Statement of Loss and Comprehensive Loss for the three and nine months ended December 31, 2017
and 2016, Unaudited Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the three and nine months ended December 31, 2017
and 2016 and Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three and nine months ended December 31, 2017 and
2016, and the notes thereto
Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Balance Sheet of Petrolia Energy Corporation as of December 31, 2017 and Unaudited Pro
Forma Combined Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2017
SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.
Petrolia Energy Corporation
/s/ Zel C. Khan
Zel C. Khan
Chief Executive Officer
Date: October 5, 2018

EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit No. Description
99.1

99.2

99.3

Audited Consolidated Statements of Financial Position of Bow Energy Ltd. as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, Audited
Consolidated Statement of Loss and Comprehensive Loss for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, Audited Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 and Audited Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, and the notes thereto
Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Financial Position of Bow Energy Ltd. as of December 31, 2017 and March 31, 2017,
Unaudited Consolidated Statement of Loss and Comprehensive Loss for the three and nine months ended December 31, 2017
and 2016, Unaudited Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the three and nine months ended December 31, 2017
and 2016 and Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three and nine months ended December 31, 2017 and
2016, and the notes thereto
Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Balance Sheet of Petrolia Energy Corporation as of December 31, 2017 and Unaudited Pro
Forma Combined Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2017

Petrolia Energy Corporation 8-K/A
Exhibit 99.1

BOW ENERGY LTD.
(formerly ACL International Ltd.)

Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholders of Bow Energy Ltd. (formerly ACL International Ltd.)
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Bow Energy Ltd. (formerly ACL International Ltd.), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as at March 31, 2017 and 2016, the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss, changes in
equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Bow Energy Ltd.
(formerly ACL International Ltd.) as at March 31, 2017 and 2016, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.
Emphasis of Matter
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2 in the consolidated financial statements which indicates the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the ability of Bow Energy Ltd. (formerly ACL International Ltd.) to continue as a going concern.

Calgary, Alberta
July 28, 2017

Bow Energy Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
As at March 31,
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
Notes
Assets
Current assets
Cash
Trade and other receivables
Prepaid expenses and deposits
Oil and gas properties and equipment
Advances to joint venture
Investment in joint venture
Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Notes payable
Total liabilities
Equity
Share capital
Contributed surplus
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Deficit
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

2017

$
15

8
6
6
$

$
9

10

$

43,623
2,607,047
6,339
2,657,009
324,326
2,007,666
168,591
5,157,592

$

208,101
1,241,295
1,449,396

$

17,649,200
3,025,869
901,920
(17,868,793)
3,708,196
5,157,592

Going concern (Note 2)
Subsequent event (Note 17)

Approved by the Board of Directors:

“Signed”

The following notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

2016

“Signed”
Robert Mohammad Fazil, President
Sadleir,
Director

$

$

55,538
1,737,055
66,589
1,859,182
2,883,772
1,058,479
164,298
5,965,731

483,994
944,524
1,428,518
17,649,200
2,906,663
571,714
(16,590,364)
4,537,213
5,965,731

Bow Energy Ltd.
Consolidated Statement of Loss and Comprehensive Loss
For the years ended March 31,
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
Notes
Revenue
Expenses
Oil and gas operating
General and administrative
Listing expense
Exchange gain
Gain on debt settlement
Impairment of oil and gas properties
Income before interest, income taxes, depletion and depreciation
Interest and financing costs
Depletion and depreciation
Net loss from continuing operations
Loss from US discontinued operations
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income
Reclassification adjustment relating to discontinued operations
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations
Total comprehensive loss for the year
Loss per share from continuing operations
Loss per share from discontinued operations

The following notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

$

7
10
8

8
14

$
10
10

2017
7,180,747

$

2016
8,008,404

5,058,518
518,963
—
(112,536)
—
16,425
5,481,370
1,699,377
(114,943)
(2,581,889)
(997,455)
(173,188)
(1,170,643)

5,270,970
905,772
957,272
—
(16,667)
657,266
7,774,613
233,791
(73,150)
(8,066,969)
(7,906,328)
(31,638)
(7,937,966)

107,786
222,420
(840,437)
(0.01)
(0.00)

—
571,715
(7,366,251)
(0.10)
(0.00)

$

Bow Energy Ltd.
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the
years
ended
March
31,
(Expressed
in
Canadian
dollars)

Balance, March 31, 2015
Common shares issued for property and
equipment (Note 7, 10)
Common shares issued in exchange of promissory
note (Note 10)
Share-based payments (Note 10)
Exchange difference on translating foreign
operations
Loss for the year
Balance, March 31, 2016
Debt issuance costs (Note 9)
Share-based payments (Note 10)
Reclassification adjustment relating to
discontinued operations
Exchange difference on translating foreign
operations
Loss for the year
Balance, March 31, 2017

Share Capital
$
6,783,995

Contributed
surplus
$
2,780,994

10,781,872

$

—

83,333
—

—
125,669

—
—
17,649,200
—
—

—
—
2,906,663
14,505
104,701

$

—

$

—
—
17,649,200

Accumulated
other
comprehensive
income
$
—

$

—

$

—
—
3,025,869

The following notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

$

$

Deficit
(8,652,398)

$

Total Equity
912,591

—

—

10,781,872

—
—

—
—

83,333
125,669

571,714
—
571,714
—
—

—
(7,937,966)
$ (16,590,364)
—
—

107,786

(107,786)

222,420
—
901,920

—
(1,170,643)
$ (17,868,793)

$

571,714
(7,937,966)
4,537,213
14,505
104,701
—

$

222,420
(1,170,643)
3,708,196

Bow Energy Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended March 31,
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
Notes
Operating
Loss for the year
Adjustments for:
Loss from discontinued operations
Accretion
Depletion and depreciation
Impairment of oil and gas properties
Gain on debt settlement
Unrealized exchange gain
Listing expense
Share-based payments
Changes in
Trade and other receivables
Prepaid expenses and deposits
Trade payables and other payables
Operating cash flows from continued operations
Operating cash flows from discontinued operations
Cash flows from operating activities
Financing
Proceeds from notes payable
Repayment of notes payable
Cash flows from financing activities
Investing
Expenditures on oil and gas assets
Advances to joint venture
Acquisition of subsidiary
Cash flows used in investing activities
Net change in cash
Foreign exchange effect on cash held in foreign currencies
Cash, beginning of the year
Cash, end of the year
Supplemental cash flows (Note 12)
The following notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

2017
$

14
9
8
8
10
7
10

(1,170,643)

2016
$

173,188
8,670
2,581,889
16,425
—
(7,093)
—
104,701

31,638
—
8,066,969
657,266
(16,667)
—
957,272
125,669

(825,102)
—
(290,341)
591,694
66,629
658,323

(1,737,055)
4,476
260,572
412,174
(96,570)
315,604

475,700
(179,972)
295,728

5

$

(7,937,966)

—
(921,525)
—
(921,525)
32,526
(44,441)
55,538
43,623

200,000
—
200,000

$

(1,001,789)
(334,753)
(762,786)
(2,099,328)
(1,583,724)
200,300
1,438,962
55,538

Bow Energy Ltd.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
1.

NATURE OF OPERATIONS
On January 24, 2017 ACL International Ltd. amended its name to Bow Energy Ltd. (the “Company” or “Bow”). The Company is an Alberta,
Canada corporation with common shares listed on the TSX Venture Exchange under the trading symbol “ONG”. The Company’s principal
office is located at 16th Floor, 205 – 5 Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta T2P 2V7.
On June 30, 2015 TSX Venture Exchange accepted the Company’s application for a change of business from a general insurance brokerage
issuer to an oil and gas issuer (Note 7). In addition, the Company met the requirements to be listed as a TSX Venture Tier 1 issuer. Effective
July 2, 2015, the listing of the Company's shares was transferred from the NEX to the TSX Venture exchange. The Company is now engaged in
the exploration and development and production of oil and natural gas in Indonesia.

2.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND GOING CONCERN
Basis of Presentation
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (“IFRIC”) in effect for the fiscal year beginning April 1, 2016.
These consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes were approved and authorized for issuance at a meeting of the Board of
Directors on July 28, 2017.
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported on the consolidated statement of financial position only when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the fair value changes to certain consolidated
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss.
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in compliance with IFRS requires management to make certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgment in applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgment of complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars (“CDN”) (unless stated otherwise), which is also the Company’s
functional currency.
Going Concern
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with IFRS which contemplates the
Company will continue in operation for the foreseeable future and be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities and commitments in
the normal course of business.
The Company’s Langsa TAC asset expired in May 2017, which has been the Company’s primary source of cash and only source of revenue. At
such time, the Company will not have any oil and gas assets in production. During this exploration stage, the recoverability of the costs incurred
to date on exploration properties is dependent upon the existence of economically recoverable reserves, the ability of the Company to obtain the
necessary financial resources to complete the exploration and development of its properties and upon future profitable production or proceeds
from the disposition of the properties and deferred exploration expenditures. The Company will periodically have to raise funds to continue
operations and, although it has been successful in doing so in the past, there is no assurance it will be able to do so in the future. These factors
give rise to a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
1

Bow Energy Ltd.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company include the accounts of all of its subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Company. Control exists when the Company is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
As at March 31, 2017 and 2016 the subsidiaries of the Company were:

Company
1275925 Alberta Inc.
Addison America Partnership
Addison York Insurance Brokers Ltd.
Addison Bay Insurance Brokers Ltd.
American Edge Insurance Services Ltd.
Bow Energy International Holdings
Bow Energy Pte. Ltd.
Blue Sky Langsa Inc.

Location of
incorporation or
organization
Canada
United States
United States
United States
United States
British Virgin Islands
British Virgin Islands
British Virgin Islands

Functional
currency
CDN
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD

Ownership
interest FY
2017
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
100%
100%
100%

Ownership
interest FY
2016
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

On November 21, 2016, the Company dissolved its U.S. subsidiaries Addison York Insurance Brokers Ltd., Addison Bay Insurance Brokers
Ltd., American Edge Insurance Services Ltd., and cancelled its partnership, the Addison America Partnership on December 5, 2016. On
November 25, 2016, the Company dissolved 1275925 Alberta Inc. The subsidiaries had nominal assets.
Intercompany balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intercompany transactions are eliminated in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Comparative information
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the financial statement presentation adopted for the current period. Oil and
gas properties and property and equipment have been combined onto one line item. Salaries and wages have been consolidated with General
and administrative expenses.
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, sales taxes, excise duties and
similar levies. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor, has pricing
latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks.
Revenue from the production of oil and gas, in which the Company has an interest with other producers, is recognized based on the Company’s
working interest and the terms of the relevant production sharing contracts. Differences between oil lifted and sold and the Company’s share of
production are not significant.
Oil and gas properties and equipment
(i) Initial recognition
Oil and gas properties and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
The initial cost of an asset comprises its purchase price or construction cost, any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset into operation,
development drilling, completion, gathering and infrastructure, the initial estimate of the decommissioning obligation and, for qualifying assets
(where relevant), borrowing costs. The purchase price or construction cost is the aggregate amount paid and the fair value of any other
consideration given to acquire the asset. The capitalized value of a finance lease is also included within property, plant and equipment.
2

Bow Energy Ltd.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
When a development project moves into the production stage, the capitalization of certain construction/development costs ceases, and costs are
either expensed, except for costs which qualify for capitalization relating to oil and gas property asset additions, improvements or new
developments.
(ii) Depreciation and depletion
Development and production costs are accumulated on a field or area basis. The net carrying value of each area is depleted using the unit of
production method by reference to the ratio of production in the year to the related proved plus probable reserves, taking into account estimated
future development costs necessary to bring those reserves into production. Future development costs are estimated taking into account the
level of development required to produce the reserves. These estimates are reviewed by independent reserve engineers at least annually. Where
significant components of development or production assets have different useful lives, they are accounted for and depreciated as separate
items of oil and gas properties and equipment.
Computer equipment is depreciated using a 30% declining balance.
An item of oil and gas properties and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated statement of loss and other
comprehensive loss when the asset is derecognized.
The asset’s residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each reporting period and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.
(iii) Exploration and evaluation assets
Costs incurred once the legal right to explore has been acquired are capitalized as intangible exploration and evaluation assets. These costs
include, but are not limited to, exploration license expenditures, leasehold property acquisition costs, evaluation costs, including drilling costs
directly attributable to an identifiable well and directly attributable general and administrative costs. These costs are accumulated in cost
centres by property and are not subject to depletion until technical feasibility and commercial viability have been determined. Exploration and
evaluation assets are assessed for impairment if sufficient data exists to determine technical feasibility and commercial viability, or if facts and
circumstances suggest that the carrying amount is unlikely to be recovered.
(iv) Impairment
At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the oil and gas assets for circumstances that indicate the assets may be impaired.
Assets are grouped together into cash-generating units (“CGUs”) for the purpose of impairment testing. If any such indication of impairment
exists, the Company makes an estimate of its recoverable amount. A CGUs recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal (“FVLCD”) and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Value in use
(“VIU”) is generally computed by reference to the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the production of proved and
probable reserves.
FVLCD is determined as the amount that would be obtained from the sale of a CGU in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable and
willing parties. The FVLCD of oil and gas assets is generally determined as the net present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to
arise from the continued use of the CGU, including any expansion prospects, and its eventual disposal, using assumptions that an independent
market participant may take into account. These cash flows are discounted by an appropriate discount rate which would be applied by such a
market participant to arrive at a net present value of the CGU. When the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset or CGU
is impaired. For impairment losses identified on a CGU, the loss is allocated on a pro rata basis to the assets within the CGU. The impairment
loss is recognized as an expense in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
At the end of each subsequent reporting period, these impairments are assessed for indicators of reversal. Where an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asset or CGU in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.
Business combinations
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations that meet the definition of a business under IFRS. The cost
of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of
exchange. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration is included in the cost of acquisition at fair value. Directly attributable transaction costs are expensed
in the current period and reported within general and administrative expenses. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is recorded as goodwill. The results of operations and cash flows of an acquired
business are included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition.
Joint arrangements
The Company’s oil and natural gas activities involve jointly controlled assets. The consolidated financial statements include the Company’s
share of these jointly controlled assets and a proportionate share of the relevant revenue and related costs.
Investment in joint venture
A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
The considerations made in determining significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to determine control over
subsidiaries.
The Company accounts for its 75% joint venture interest in Renco Elang Energy Pte Ltd. (“REE”) (note 5 and 6) using the equity method.
Under the equity method, the investment in a joint venture is initially recognized at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to
recognize changes in the Company’s share of net assets of the joint venture since the acquisition date.
The consolidated statement of loss and comprehensive loss reflects the Company’s share of the results of operations of the joint venture. Any
change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Company’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognized directly in
the equity of the joint venture, the Company recognizes its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity.
Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Company and or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in
the joint venture.
The aggregate of the Company’s share of profit or loss of the joint venture is shown on the face of the consolidated statement of loss and
comprehensive loss.
The financial statements of the joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company. When necessary, adjustments are
made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
After application of the equity method, the Company determines whether it is necessary to recognize an impairment loss on its investment in its
joint venture. At each reporting date, the Company determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the joint venture is
impaired. If there is such evidence, the Company calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the
joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognizes the loss as ‘Share of profit of a joint venture’ in the consolidated statement of loss and
comprehensive loss.
Upon loss of significant influence over the joint control over the joint venture, the Company measures and recognizes any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss.
It is REE’s policy to capitalize all exploration and evaluation expenses incurred as exploration and evaluation assets. From the date of
acquisition to March 31, 2017, all expenses incurred by REE were related to exploration and evaluation activities and as such, there is no profit
or loss in REE.
Foreign currency translation
The financial statements of each of the Company’s subsidiaries are prepared in the local currency of their home jurisdictions. Consolidation of
each subsidiary includes re-measurement from the local currency to the subsidiary’s functional currency. Functional currency is the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the subsidiary operates.
Exchange rates published by the Bank of Canada were used to translate each subsidiary’s financial statements into the consolidated financial
statements. Assets and liabilities of subsidiaries with functional currencies other than Canadian dollars are translated at the period-end rates of
exchange, and the results of their operations are translated at rates approximating the exchange rate at the transaction date. The resulting
translation adjustments are included in accumulated other comprehensive income in shareholders’ equity.
Cash
Cash consists of cash deposits in bank accounts.
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share
Basic loss per share is computed by dividing the loss for the year by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
year. Diluted loss per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if potentially dilutive securities were exercised or converted to
common share. The dilutive effect of options, convertible debt and warrants and their equivalent is computed by application of the treasury stock
method. Diluted earnings per share exclude all dilutive potential common shares if their effect is anti-dilutive.
Share-based payments
The Company uses the fair value method to account for all share-based payments. Under this method, compensation cost is charged directly to
earnings over the vesting period with a corresponding credit to contributed surplus. Reciprocal transactions in which the Company acquires
goods and services by granting equity instruments or by incurring liabilities to a third party in amounts based on the price of the Company's
shares are accounted for based on the fair value of the consideration received, or the fair value of the equity instruments, or liabilities incurred,
whichever is more reliably measurable. When stock options are exercised, the consideration and the related contributed surplus are recorded in
share capital.
The fair value of stock options granted are estimated using the Black Scholes option pricing model, taking into account amounts that are
believed to approximate the expected volatility of the trading price of the Company's shares, the expected lives of the awards of share-based
payments, the fair value of the Company's shares and the risk free interest rate, as determined at the grant date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Where a grant of options is cancelled or settled during the vesting period, excluding forfeitures when vesting conditions are not satisfied, the
Company immediately accounts for the cancellation as an acceleration of vesting and recognizes the amount that otherwise would have been
recognized for services received over the remainder of the vesting period. Any payment made to the employee on the cancellation is accounted
for as the repurchase of an equity interest except to the extent the payment exceeds the fair value of the equity instrument granted, measured at
the repurchase date. Any such excess is recognized as an expense. The Company accounts for forfeitures by reversing the expense and
contributed surplus at the forfeit date.
Taxes
Tax expense is comprised of current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity.
Current tax expense is based on the results of operations for the period as adjusted for items that are not taxable or not deductible. Current tax is
calculated using tax rates and laws that were enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Provisions are established
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
Deferred tax is recognized using the liability method, providing for temporary differences arising between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is calculated using tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and which are expected to apply when the related deferred tax
asset is realized or the deferred tax liability is settled
Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient future taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
The effect of a change in enacted or substantively enacted income tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized in profit or
loss in the period that the change occurs unless the original entry was recorded to equity.
Financial Instruments
Recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities considered held-to-maturity, loans and receivables, and other financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value and subsequently are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method of amortization. Derivatives and embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value on initial recognition and recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position. Measurement in
subsequent periods depends on whether the financial instrument has been classified as fair valued through profit or loss, available-for-sale, heldto-maturity, loans and receivables or other financial liabilities. Transaction costs are expensed for assets or liabilities classified as fair value
through profit and loss.
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets or financial liabilities classified at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value on initial recognition, with
changes to their fair value recognized through profit or loss at each reporting date. The Company has designated its cash as financial
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Available-for sale
Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value with unrealized gains and losses recognized in other comprehensive income (loss).
Investments in equity instruments classified as available for-sale that do not have a quoted market price in an active market are measured at cost.
The Company does not currently have any available-for-sale financial assets or investments in equity instruments.
Held to maturity
Held to maturity financial instruments are initially measured at fair value. Subsequently, they are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The
Company does not currently have any held to maturity financial assets or liabilities.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value. Subsequently, they are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The Company has
designated its trade and other receivables and advances to joint venture as loans and receivables.
Other financial liabilities
Other liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Subsequently, they are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The
Company has designated its trade and other payables and notes payable as other financial liabilities.
Derivatives
Derivative instruments are measured at fair value with any changes in the fair values of derivative instruments being recognized in profit or loss
with the exception of derivatives designated as effective cash flow hedges. The Company has no such designated hedges.
Embedded derivatives
An embedded derivative is separated from its host contract and accounted for as a derivative and measured at fair value unless certain criteria
are met. The Company does not have embedded derivatives.
Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Derecognition of financial instruments
Financial assets: Financial assets are derecognized only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire, or when
the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. Gain or loss arising from derecognition is
recognized in profit or loss.
Financial liabilities: Financial liabilities are derecognized only when they are extinguished or when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. Gain or loss arising from derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are assessed for impairment at each reporting date. At each reporting date, the
Company assesses whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or
group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired, if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
has occurred after initial recognition of the asset and that event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets.
Basis of Fair Value
Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. Fair value of financial
instruments
Financial instruments recorded at fair value on the consolidated statement of financial position are classified using a fair value hierarchy that
reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:
Level 1 − quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 − inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liabilities, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. from derived prices); and
Level 3 − inputs for the asset or liability that are not based upon observable market data.
Fair values of financial instruments reflect the credit risk of the instrument and include adjustments to take account of the credit risk of the
Company and counterparties when appropriate.
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, trade and other payables, and notes payable on the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate fair market value because of the short term to maturity of these instruments.
Cash is based on Level 1 inputs of the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers to level 3 hierarchy during the year ended March 31, 2017.
Changes in accounting standards
On April 1, 2016, the Company adopted amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38
Intangible Assets. The adoption of these amendments had no impact on the amounts recorded in the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended March 31, 2017.
Future accounting changes
The Company has reviewed amendments to accounting pronouncements that have been issued but are not yet effective and determined that the
following may have an impact on the Company:
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments which replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. IFRS 9 includes requirements for recognition and measurement, impairment, de-recognition and general hedge accounting. IFRS
9 is effective for annual period beginning on or after January 1, 2018.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
In May 2014, the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) issued IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers which specifies
how and when an entity will recognize revenue as well as requiring entities to provide users of consolidated financial statements with more
informative, relevant disclosures. IFRS 15 is effective for annual period beginning on or after January 1, 2018.
IFRS 16 Leases
In January 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16 Leases which replaces the previous leases standard, IAS 17 Leases. IFRS 16 eliminates the
classification of leases as either operating leases or finance leases as is required by IAS 17 and, instead, introduces a single lessee accounting
model. Lessors continue to classify leases as operating leases or finance leases, and account for those two types of leases differently. IFRS 16 is
effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019.
IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows
Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows require disclosures that enable financial statement users to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017.
IAS 12 Income Taxes
Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes clarify the recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealized losses related to debt instruments measured at
fair value. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017.
IFRIC 22 foreign currency transactions and advance consideration
This Interpretation addresses how to determine the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the payment or receipt of advance consideration in a foreign currency. The interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
The Company is currently assessing the impact these standards and amendments may have on its consolidated financial statements.

4.

USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. These estimates and judgments are
reviewed periodically, and, as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in earnings/loss in the period in which they become known.
Significant estimates and judgments made by the Company that have the most significant risk of causing material misstatement to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities are discussed below.
Use of judgments
In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the significant judgments made by management in applying the Company’s accounting
policies and the key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:
Cash generating units
The determination of cash generating units requires judgment in defining the smallest identifiable group of assets that generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. CGUs are determined by geographical area, similar exposure
to market risk and materiality. The Company has two CGUs being the Langsa TAC and South Block A.
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USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (continued)
Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including legal, contractor, land
access and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur.
The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the use
of estimates regarding the outcome of future events.
Decommissioning liability
Management has reviewed the Company’s operations and agreements for any statutory, contractual, constructive or legal obligation with respect
to potential environmental rehabilitation. Based on management’s review, it has determined that the Company does not have any
decommissioning liabilities.
Business combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. The determination of fair value often requires
management to make assumptions and estimates about future events. The assumptions and estimates with respect to determining the fair value
of property, plant, and equipment, and exploration and evaluation assets acquired generally require the most judgment and include estimates of
reserves acquired, forecast benchmark commodity prices, and discount rates. Changes in any of the assumptions or estimates used in
determining the fair value of acquired assets and liabilities could impact the amounts assigned to assets, liabilities in the purchase price
allocation, and any resulting gain or goodwill. Future net earnings can be affected as a result of changes in future depletion, depreciation and
accretion, and asset impairments.
The Company applied judgement in accounting for the acquisition of its 50% working interest in a Technical Assistance Contract (the “Langsa
TAC”) from Blue Sky Langsa Ltd. (“BSL”) which constitutes an investment in a joint operation for the Company. In accordance with IFRS 3,
BSL was identified as the accounting acquirer in this transaction. However, the Company’s consolidated financial statements were not presented
as a continuation of Langsa TAC because the Company was not a business at the time of the acquisition, this transaction relates to the
acquisition of joint control rather than control and the joint operation did not exist prior to the acquisition.
Joint arrangements
Judgment is required to determine when the Company has joint control over an arrangement. In establishing joint control, the Company
considers whether unanimous consent is required to direct the activities that significantly affect the returns of the arrangement, such as the
capital and operating activities of the arrangement. Additionally, the Company assesses the rights and obligations arising from the arrangement
by considering its governance structure, legal form, and terms agreed upon by the parties sharing control, including the contractual rights of each
partner, dispute resolution procedures, termination provisions, and procedures for subsequent transactions in its determination of joint control.
Once joint control has been established, judgment is also required to classify the joint arrangement. The type of joint arrangement is determined
through analysis of the rights and obligations arising from the arrangement by considering its legal structure, legal form. And terms agreed upon
by the parties sharing control. An arrangement that is not structured through a separate vehicle in which the controlling parties have rights to the
assets, revenues and substantially all of the economic benefits generated through the arrangement, in addition to obligations for the liabilities
and expenses, is classified as a joint operation. An arrangement in which these criteria are not met is classified as a joint venture.
The Company used judgement to account for the purchase of Peak Oil & Gas SBA Pte Ltd. (“POGSBA”) as an acquisition of a business.
POGSBA held a 75% interest in REE of which the Company has made the judgement to account for this investment as a joint venture because
the ownership of REE holds joint control over the strategic financial and operating decisions of REE, but no single venturer has the ability to
control the relevant activities of REE unilaterally and the parties have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
10

Bow Energy Ltd.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
4.

USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (continued)
Impairment of assets
Management uses judgment to assess the existence of impairment indicators such as events or changes in circumstances that may indicate the
carrying amount of assets may not be recoverable.
Use of Estimates
Units of production (UOP) depletion of oil and gas assets
Oil and gas properties are depleted using the UOP method over total proved developed and probable hydrocarbon reserves. This results in
depletion charge proportional to the depletion of the anticipated remaining production from the field.
The life of each item, which is assessed at least annually, has regard to both its physical life limitations and present assessments of economically
recoverable reserves of the field at which the asset is located. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions, including the
amount of recoverable reserves and estimates of future capital expenditure. The calculation of the UOP rate of depletion will be impacted to the
extent that actual production in the future is different from current forecast production based on total proved and probable reserves, or future
capital expenditure estimates change. Changes to proved and probable reserves could arise due to changes in the factors or assumptions used in
estimating reserves, including: the effect on proved and probable reserves of differences between actual commodity prices and commodity price
assumptions and unforeseen operational issues.
Recoverability of oil and gas assets
The Company assesses each asset or CGU each reporting period to determine whether any indication of impairment exists. Where an indicator
of impairment exists, a formal estimate of the recoverable amount is made, which is considered to be the higher of the fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. The assessments require the use of estimates and assumptions such as long-term oil prices (considering current and
historical prices, price trends and related factors), discount rates, operating costs, future capital requirements, decommissioning costs,
exploration potential, reserves and operating performance (which includes production and sales volumes). These estimates and assumptions are
subject to risk and uncertainty. Therefore, there is a possibility that changes in circumstances will impact these projections, which may impact
the recoverable amount of assets and/or CGUs.
Depletion and depreciation
Management is required to make certain estimates and assumptions when determining the depletion and depreciation methods and rates and
residual values of property and equipment.
Useful lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life.
Management reviews depletion and depreciation methods, rates, and residual values annually and adjusts depletion and depreciation accordingly
on a prospective basis.
Income tax
Management exercises judgment in estimating the provision for taxes. The Company is subject to tax laws in various jurisdictions where it
operates. Various tax laws are potentially subject to different interpretations by the taxpayer and the relevant tax authority. To the extent that the
Company’s interpretations differ from those of tax authorities or the timing of realization is not as expected, the provision for taxes may
increase or decrease in future periods to reflect actual experience.
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USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (continued)
Share-based payments
The Company measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the
date at which they are granted. Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determining the most appropriate valuation
model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determining the most appropriate inputs to the
valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The
assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 10.

5.

ACQUISITION OF PEAK OIL & GAS SBA PTE LTD.
On June 29, 2015, the Company paid $762,786 ($800,000 Australian) to acquire 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of Peak Oil & Gas
SBA Pte Ltd., which was subsequently renamed to Bow Energy Pte. Ltd. (“BEPL”). BEPL owns 75% of the issued and outstanding shares of
Renco Elang Energy Pte. Ltd. (“REE”) which owns a 51% working interest in a Production Sharing Contract referred to as “South Block A”
(the “Assets” or “SBA”) located onshore, North Sumatra, Indonesia. REE is the operator of the Assets. The acquisition had an effective date
of May 1, 2015 and closed on July 2, 2015. Effectively, the Company acquired a 38.25% working interest in the Assets.

The purchase price allocation can be summarized as follows:
Prepaid expenses and deposits
Investment in joint venture
Advances to joint venture
Trade and other payables

$

$

5,897
156,837
690,862
(90,810)
762,786

For a discussion in the change in value of and an increase in percentage, refer to Note 6.
6.

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE
The Company’s investment in REE has been accounted for as a joint venture. The Company has joint control over the strategic financial and
operating decisions of REE, but no single venturer has the ability to control the relevant activities of REE unilaterally and the parties have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
The following is summarized financial information for REE, based on its financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS.
Revenue
Profit from continuing operations
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Current assets (i)
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Net assets

$

$

$

—
—
—
—
6,125
9,912,772
(324,259)
—
9,594,638

(i) Includes cash of $779
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INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE (Continued)
As part of the acquisition of REE, the Company acquired loans receivable of $690,862 and subsequently advanced additional funds bringing
total advances to $2,007,666. These advances are non-interest bearing. As part of the REE shareholder’s agreement, all after-tax proceeds from
the operations of SBA are first used to repay the advances, prior to any distributions relative to each parities share interests. As at March 31,
2017, SBA had not reached technical feasibility or commercial viability and as such the amounts remain outstanding.
On September 23, 2016, PT. Prosys Oil and Gas International (“POGI”) defaulted on a cash call requirement to fund SBA as part of its 14%
working interest. The deadline to remedy the default was on October 23, 2016. As of March 31, 2017, the default has not been remedied and
REE and KRX Energy (SBA) Pte Ltd. are taking steps to transfer POGI’s interest in SBA in the following proportions: REE: 8.3% and KRX
Energy (SBA) Pte Ltd. 5.7%. The proportionate interests in SBA are now: 59.3% for REE and 40.7% for Lion.

7.

ACQUISITION OF LANGSA TAC ASSETS
On June 11, 2015, the Company closed its Amended and Restated Asset Purchase Agreement dated April 30, 2015 with Blue Sky Langsa Ltd.
(“BSL”) pursuant to which BOW acquired from BSL a 50% interest in a Technical Assistance Contract for a block referred to as “Langsa TAC”
or the “BSL Assets” located offshore, North Sumatra, Indonesia. As consideration, BOW paid $100,000 cash and issued 81,871,667 common
shares to certain nominees of BSL (the “Transaction”). The Transaction resulted in a change of business and a reactivation of BOW pursuant to
Policy 5.2 of the TSX Venture Exchange.
The purchase price allocation can be summarized as follows:
81,871,667 common shares
Cash consideration after closing adjustments
Total consideration
Purchase price allocation:
Property and equipment
Listing expense on acquisition

$
$
$
$

10,781,872
1,101,100
11,882,972
10,925,700
957,272
11,882,972

The acquisition had an effective date of January 1, 2015 and the purchase price was adjusted for the results of operations between the effective
date and closing of the transaction.
For accounting purposes, Langsa TAC was deemed to be a business while BOW, at the date of the Transaction, was deemed not to be a
business. As such, IFRS 2 was applied to account for the Transaction. As a result of the shares issued, the nominees of BSL would control
85.39% of the issued and outstanding common shares of BOW. The substance of the Transaction is a reverse take-over (“RTO”) of BOW by
the nominees of BSL with Langsa TAC deemed to be the accounting acquirer.
The Langsa TAC meets the definition of a business under IFRS but it is not a legal entity. IFRS does not provide specific accounting guidance
for an RTO involving a non-legal-entity accounting acquirer. Therefore, the Transaction has been accounted for as a continuation of Langsa
TAC from the date of the acquisition whereby the shares issued to effect the Transaction are issued for the net assets of BOW, resulting in a
public company listing expense of $957,272. The fair value of the consideration is determined based on the percentage of ownership of the
merged entity that was transferred to the shareholders of BOW upon completion of the Transaction. This value represents the fair value of the
number of shares that Langsa TAC would have had to issue for the ratio of ownership interest in the combined entity to be the same as if the
Transaction had taken the legal form of Langsa TAC acquiring 100% of the shares of BOW. The percentage of ownership that BOW
shareholders have in the combined entity is 14.61%. On the date of the Transaction, IFRS 1 was applied to the assets and liabilities of Langsa
TAC resulting in a fair value determination of oil and gas properties and equity to be $10,925,700 determined using internal estimates as well as
independent reserve evaluation using proved and probable reserves discounted at 12%.
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ACQUISITION OF BLUE SKY LANGSA ASSETS (continued)
The consolidated statement of loss and comprehensive loss includes the results of operations for the period following closing of the transaction
on June 11, 2015. Specifically, the Company’s loss for the year ended March 31, 2016 includes approximately $8.0 million of revenue and $2.7
million of operating income generated from the Langsa TAC subsequent to closing. If the acquisition had occurred on April 1, 2015, pro-forma
revenue and operating income for the acquired property is estimated to be approximately $9.7 million and $2.9 million, respectively, for the year
ended March 31, 2016. Operating income is defined as revenue, net of royalties, less production and transportation expenses. This pro-forma
information is not necessarily indicative of the results of operations that would have resulted had the acquisition been effected on the dates
indicated, or the results that may be obtained in the future.

8.

OIL AND GAS PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Development
and
production
assets
Cost
As at April 1, 2015
Additions (Note 7)
Foreign currency translation change
Cost as at March 31, 2016
Foreign currency translation change
Cost as at March 31, 2017
Accumulated depletion
As at April 1, 2015
Charge for the year
Impairment
Foreign currency translation change
Accumulated depletion as at March
31, 2016
Charge for the period
Impairment
Foreign currency translation change
Accumulated depletion as at
March 31, 2017
Net book value as at March 31, 2016
Net book value as at March 31, 2017

$

$
$

—
10,925,700
582,929
11,508,629
300,780
11,809,409

Other Assets
$

$
$

Total

4,591
—
—
4,591
—
4,591

$

$
$

4,591
10,925,700
582,929
11,513,220
300,780
11,814,000

$

—
8,066,280
657,266
(95,361)

$

574
689
—
—

$

574
8,066,969
657,266
(95,361)

$

8,628,185
2,581,201
16,425
261,912

$

1,263
688
—
—

$

8,629,448
2,581,889
16,425
261,912

$

11,487,723

$

1,951

$

11,489,674

$
$

2,880,444
321,686

$
$

3,328
2,640

$
$

2,883,772
324,326

The depletion calculation for the year ended March 31, 2017 included estimated future development costs of $nil (2016: $nil) for proved and
probable reserves.
As at March 31, 2017, the Company identified certain business risks related to its oil and gas activities, such as a sustained decrease in global oil
and gas prices and the anticipated expiration of the Langsa TAC, as indicators of impairment. As a result, the Company performed an impairment
test at March 31, 2017 and estimated the recoverable amount of its CGUs based on the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. An impairment of $16,425 (2016: $657,266) was recorded in the consolidated statement of loss and comprehensive loss. To estimate the
recoverable amount, the Company calculated the total production after March 31, 2017 and adjusted the value based on the remaining estimated
proved and probable reserves.
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9.

NOTES PAYABLE
March 31, 2017

Promissory note
Promissory note
Promissory note
Credit note (i)

Nominal
interest
rate
12%
12%
12%
9%

Date of
maturity
30/09/2017

07/14/2017

Face
value
$
48,498
—
—
1,197,900
$ 1,246,398

March 31, 2016

Carrying
amount
$
49,230
—
—
1,192,065
$ 1,241,295

$

$

Face
value
50,000
30,000
20,000
836,630
936,630

Carrying
amount
$
54,159
32,288
21,447
836,630
$ 944,524

The promissory notes are repayable in full on maturity and interest is paid at maturity. The difference between the face value and carrying
amount is attributed to accrued interest and debt discounts.
(i) On October 26, 2016 the Company entered into Amended and Restated Loan Agreement (“the Agreement”) with the lender. Under the
amendment, the interest rate increased from 6.75% to 9% per annum and extended the maturity date to July 14, 2017. The lender advanced a
further USD$355,000 with a maturity date of January 7, 2017. The face value of the note in USD as at March 31, 2017 was USD$900,000
(March 31, 2016: USD $645,000). The credit note is secured by a general security agreement over the assets of the Company. Interest is paid
monthly. In addition, the Company granted 320,000 warrants to the lender for the right to purchase common shares, of the Company at $0.10
per share. Interest is paid monthly.
The warrants expire on the date of repayment of the loan. The Company has fair valued the cost of the warrants using a Black Scholes model
and recorded a discount on the debt of $14,505 with an offset to contributed surplus. The following assumptions were used in calculating the
warrant value under the Black Scholes model: 0% forfeiture rate, measurement price of $0.08, which was the closing price of BOW stock at the
date of the grant, risk free rate of 0.56%, an expected term of 0.72 years, dividend yield equal to 0% and volatility of 203% based on the
Company’s stock history. The discount is being amortized over the term of the debt. During the period ending March 31, 2017, the Company
recorded an accretion expense of $8,670 (2016: $nil) related to this debt.
On July 12, 2017, the Agreement date of maturity was extended. USD $300,000 is due and payable on September 15, 2017 and $600,000 is due
and payable on December 31, 2017.
10.

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized
Unlimited common shares without par value
Unlimited class B voting preferred shares without par value
Unlimited class C non-voting preferred shares without par value

Issued
Balance, March 31, 2015
Issued for property and equipment
Issued on settlement of notes payable
Balance, March 31, 2016
Balance, March 31, 2017

Note
7

Shares
9,605,184
81,871,667
833,333
92,310,184
92,310,184

$

$
$

Amount
6,783,995
10,781,872
83,333
17,649,200
17,649,200
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10.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
On June 17, 2015, the Company paid a finder’s fee in relation to the acquisition of the BSL Assets by issuing 4,406,084 common shares of the
Company recorded at fair market value of $0.12 per share. Subsequently this finder’s fee was cancelled and the common shares issued were
returned to treasury.
On July 3, 2015, the Company issued 833,333 common shares of the Company to settle an outstanding note payable in the amount of $100,000.
At the date of settlement, the share price of the Company was $0.10, which resulted in a gain of $16,667 on settlement.
Share-based payments
The Company has adopted an incentive stock option plan whereby the maximum number of shares reserved for issue under the plan shall not
exceed 10% of the total number of issued and outstanding common shares of the Company from time to time on a non-diluted basis.
Changes in share options during the year ended March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016 are as follows:
2017

Outstanding, beginning of year
Granted
Forfeited
Outstanding, end of the year

Number of
options
6,117,658
3,100,000
(700,000)
8,517,658

2016

$
$
$

Weighted
average
exercise
price
0.12
0.12
—
0.12

Number
of
options
—
6,617,658
(500,000)
6,117,658

$
$
$

Weighted
average
exercise
price
—
0.12
0.12
0.12

The weighted average remaining life of the options is 3.84 years. As at March 31, 2017, 2,125,297 of options were exercisable.
For the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company recorded share-based payments of $104,701 (2016: $125,669). The value was
determined using the Black-Scholes model using the following assumptions:
Share price per share at grant date
Risk free rate
Expected life
Expected volatility
Dividend yield
Forfeiture rate
Black-Scholes value per option

2017
$0.07 - $0.10
0.97%- 1.09%
2.75-3.5 years
112% - 140%
0%
0%
$0.044 - $0.077

$

$

2016
0.07
1.09%
2-5 years
112%
0%
7.56%
0.044

Expected volatility was determined based on comparable listed companies in the oil and gas industry on the TSX-V.
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10.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Per share amounts
2017

Weighted average number of shares – basic:
Issued common shares as at April 1
Effect of common shares issued during the year
Continued operations net loss per share – basic and diluted (1)
Discontinued operations net loss per share – basic and diluted (1)

$
$

92,310,184
—
92,310,184
(0.01)
(0.00)

2016

$
$

9,605,184
69,041,598
78,646,782
(0.10)
(0.00)

(1) The Company did not have any in-the-money stock options during the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016. The effect of stock options is
anti-dilutive in loss periods.
11.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company enters into transactions with related parties from time to time in the normal course of business, as well as key management
personnel.
On May 30, 2016, an Officer of the Corporation granted an unsecured loan, which carried interest at 12% per annum in the amount of $58,000
for general working capital. The note was repaid in full during the year. The above transaction was in the normal course of business. During
the period, $1,826 in interest was earned on this loan.
Compensation of key management personnel
Key management personnel are comprised of all members of the Board of Directors and the Named Officers (as defined in Form 51-102F6
Statement of Executive compensation and disclosed in the Company’s Management Proxy Circular in connection with its annual meeting of
shareholders). The summary of the compensation of key management personnel is as follows:
Salary and bonuses
Share-based payments
Total compensation of key management personnel

March 31, 2017
185,721
104,701
$
290,422
$

March 31, 2016
130,598
125,669
$
256,267
$
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12.

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
During the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company had non-cash transactions as follows:
March 31, 2017
Financing activities
Shares issued for debt settlement
Debt settled for shares
Common shares issued for property and equipment

$

Investing activities
Property and equipment acquisition by issue of common shares
Additional information
Interest paid
Income taxes paid
13.

March 31, 2016
$

$

—
—
—
—

$

100,000
(100,000)
9,824,600
9,824,600

$
$

—
—

$
$

(9,824,600)
(9,824,600)

$
$

71,761
—

$
$

57,095
—

INCOME TAXES
A reconciliation of income tax expense (recovery) at statutory rates with the reported income taxes (recovered) is as follows:

Net loss continuing operations before income taxes
Computed taxes recovered at statutory rates 27% (2016–26.5%)
Share-based compensation, listing expense and other
Rate difference between Canada and foreign operations
Change in deferred tax asset not recognized
Income tax expense (recovery)

2017
(997,455)
(269,313)
28,269
105,398
135,646
—

$

$

$

$

2016
(7,906,328)
(2,095,177)
278,595
(652,158)
2,468,740
—

The statutory tax rate increased from 26.5% to 27% due to an increase in the Alberta provincial tax rate on July 1, 2015.
The deferred tax assets (liabilities) are comprised of:
As at March 31,
Notes payable
Non-capital loss carry forwards

$
$

2017
(2,921)
2,921
—

2016
$
$

—
—
—

18

Bow Energy Ltd.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
13.

INCOME TAXES (Continued)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the following deductible temporary differences as it is not probable that future
taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. The major components of the unrecognized deductible temporary differences are
as follows:
As at March 31,
Oil and gas properties and equipment
Non-capital loss carry forwards
Net capital loss carry forwards
Goodwill
Other
Unrecognized deductible temporary differences

$

$

2017
4,829,456
6,015,243
12,839,360
—
—
23,684,059

$

$

2016
5,167,615
22,728,836
—
11,085,172
14,683
38,996,306

As at March 31, 2017, the Company had accumulated Canadian non-capital losses of approximately $6,015,243 which commence expiring in
2032. US net operating losses expired upon the dissolution of the entities in December 2016. The benefit of these losses and the other assets
have not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
14.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
On May 1, 2014, the Company completed the sale of all of its shares (51%) in its Canadian subsidiary Anthony Clark Insurance Brokers Ltd. to
an arm’s length third party. The Company had ongoing windup costs related to the insurance business up until the dissolution of the companies
in December of 2016.
During the year ended March 31, 2017, there were no activities in discontinued US operations; however, a loss of $173,188 (2016: $31,638)
resulted due to ongoing wind up obligations.

15.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks that arise as a result of its operating and financing activities such as credit risk,
liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk. The Company manages its exposure to these risks by operating in a manner that
minimizes this exposure.
Credit risk
The Company is exposed to credit risk resulting from the possibility that counterparties may default on their financial obligations, or if there is a
concentration of transactions carried out with the same counterparty or of financial obligations which have similar economic characteristics such
that they could be similarly affected by changes in economic conditions.
The Company’s financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk relate primarily to cash, and trade receivables from
partners in the oil and gas assets. Cash is in place with major financial institutions. The Company has evaluation and monitoring processes in
place and writes off accounts when they are determined to be uncollectible.
As at March 31, 2017, the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is through its trade and other receivable balance of $2,607,047 (2016:
$1,737,055). $2,601,937 of this balance is from one creditor, its operating partner of BSL.
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15.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
The Company considers its receivables to be aged as follows:
March 31, 2017
2,607,047
—
$
2,607,047

Current
90 + days

$

March 31, 2016
1,737,055
—
$
-1,737,055
$

Foreign currency risk
The Company is exposed to the financial risk related to fluctuations of foreign exchange rates. The Company conducts business operations in
Indonesia and has U.S. dollar denominated revenue and indebtedness and is therefore exposed to cash flow risks associated with fluctuations in
the relative value of the Canadian and U.S. dollar. A significant change in the currency exchange rate of the Canadian dollar relative to the U.S.
dollar could have a material effect on the Company’s results of operations, financial position and cash flows. The Company does not engage in
hedging activities or use financial instruments to reduce its risk exposure.
At March 31, 2017, the Company is exposed to currency risk through the following assets and liabilities denominated in U.S. dollars (amounts
shown in Canadian dollar equivalents):
Cash
Trade and other receivables
Advances to joint venture
Trade and other payables
Note payable
Net exposure

$

$

35,482
2,607,047
2,007,666
(56,730)
(1,197,900)
3,395,565

Based on the above net exposure at March 31, 2017, and assuming all other variables remain constant, a 10% depreciation or appreciation of
the Canadian dollar against the U.S. dollar would result in a decrease or increase of $339,557 in the Company’s loss and comprehensive loss.
Interest rate risk
All of the Company’s indebtedness bears interest at fixed rates and as a result the Company is not exposed to significant interest rate risk.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company cannot meet a demand for cash or fund its short and long-term obligations as they come due.
Liquidity risk also includes the risk of not being able to liquidate assets in a timely manner at a reasonable price.
The Company manages its liquidity risk through cash and debt management. The Company’s objective in managing liquidity risk is to increase
revenues, minimize operational costs and to maintain sufficient liquidity in order to meet these operational requirements at any point in time.
The Company’s ability to obtain funding from external sources may be restricted if the Company’s financial performance and condition
deteriorate. In addition, credit and capital markets are subject to inherent global risks that may negatively affect the Company’s access and
ability to fund its short-term and long-term debt requirements. The Company mitigates these risks by actively monitoring market conditions
and diversifying its sources of funding and debt maturity.
All of the Company’s liabilities are due within twelve months.
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15.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Commodity price risk
Price fluctuations for both crude oil and natural gas are influenced by world supply and local demand factors. The Company has no influence
over the pricing of oil and natural gas and has not attempted to mitigate commodity price risk through the use of financial derivatives. Currently
all of the Company’s oil and gas revenue is from Indonesia.
A 5% change in the price of oil produced would represent a change in net loss for the year ended March 31, 2017 of approximately $359,037.

16.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company considers the capital it manages to be the amounts it has in cash, share capital and notes payable.
Cash
Notes payable
Share capital

2017
43,623
1,241,295
17,649,200
$18,934,118
$

2016
55,538
944,523
17,649,200
$18,649,261
$

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to:
●
●
●
●
●

safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
ensure sufficient liquidity to support its financial obligations and execute its operating and strategic plans
optimize the cost of its capital at an acceptable level in light of current and future industry, market and economic risks and conditions
utilize the long-term funding sources to manage its working capital and restructure debt to minimize the cost of its capital
acquire assets and dispose of non-performing assets

The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may attempt to issue new shares, repurchase shares, issue
debt, acquire or dispose of assets. The Company requires capital to repay existing obligations. There can be no certainty of the Company’s
ability to refinance its existing obligations. In order to facilitate the management of the Company’s capital, the Company prepares annual cash
flow forecasts that are updated as necessary depending on various factors and general industry conditions. There were no changes in the
Company’s approach to capital management during the year ended March 31, 2017.
The declaration and payment of dividends and the amount thereof are at the discretion of the Board. In order to maintain and maximize growth,
maintain sufficient liquidity to support its financial obligations and optimize the cost of capital, the Company currently does not pay out
dividends.
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17.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Langsa Tac
In May of 2017, the Company’s license for the Langsa TAC block expired and was not renewed by the government, consequently, the
Company has ceased production of oil.
Bukit Energy
Bow closed corporate acquisitions, on May 24, 2017, resulting in Bow acquiring interests in four Production Sharing Contracts (“PSCs”) and
one non-conventional joint study agreement (“JSA”), all interests are located onshore in Sumatra, Indonesia. The Company’s wholly owned
subsidiary, Bow Energy International Holdings Inc. (“BEIH”), acquired all of Bukit Energy Inc.’s shareholding interests (the “Subsidiary
Shares”) in five Singapore holding companies (the “Holding Companies”) that own the interests. The Holding Companies being acquired by
BEIH own the following interests in the conventional and non-conventional PSCs and non-conventional JSA:
●
●
●
●
●

Bohorok PSC (conventional) – operated 50% participating interest, 465,266 net acres
◌ Drill ready step-out location with resource potential of 41 BCF & 3 MMBC (internal estimates)
Palmerah Baru PSC (conventional) – operated 54% participating interest, 98,977 net acres
◌ Several light oil play trends, shallow and deep analogues in surrounding PSC’s with prolific production
Palmerah Deep PSC (non-conventional)- operated 69.36% participating interest, 170,398 net acres
◌ Area underlies conventional PSC
Mahato PSC (conventional)- 20% participating interest, 167,115 net acres, non-operated
◌ 2 drill ready locations adjacent to producing fields
Bohorok Deep (non-conventional)- 20.25% participating interest in a JSA, non-operated with option to become operator
◌ Area of JSA underlies the Bohorok PSC and adjacent to Pertamina’s nonconventional PSC

Assets were purchased for a total of USD $1,834,000 for a total CDN purchase price of $2,515,331. The Company paid an initial amount of
USD $850,000 (less adjustments), assumed liabilities of USD $484,000 and owes a balance of USD $500,000 which is due and payable on
August 31, 2017.
Notes payable
On June 13, 2017, the Company issued a note payable in receipt for $100,000. The note matures on September 30, 2017 and carries interest at
12% per annum.
On June 29, 2017, the Company issued a note payable to a related party in receipt for $47,000. The note matures on September 30, 2017 and
carries interest at 12% per annum.
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Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)
For the nine months ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

THE ACCOMPANYING CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2017 AND 2016 HAVE NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR AUDITED BY THE CORPORATION’S AUDITORS

Bow Energy Ltd.
Condensed Interim Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
Unaudited (Expressed in Canadian dollars)

Notes
Assets
Current assets
Cash
Trade and other receivables
Prepaid expenses and deposits

As at December 31,
2017

$

Total current assets
Non-current assets
Prepaid expenses and deposits
Oil and gas property and equipment
Advances to joint venture
Investment in joint venture
Exploration and evaluation assets

6
7
8

Total non-current assets

43,623
2,607,047

5,975

6,339

526,921

2,657,009

424,018
15,446
2,049,605
158,901
2,051,651

—
324,326
2,007,666
168,591
—
2,500,583

$

5,226,542

$

5,157,592

$

1,224,411
1,642,601

$

208,101
1,241,295

9

Total liabilities
Equity
Share capital
Contributed surplus
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Deficit
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

$

4,699,621

Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Notes payable

5,415
515,531

As at March 31,
2017

$

2,867,012

1,449,396

17,649,200
3,197,509
248,721

17,649,200
3,025,869
901,920

(18,735,900)

(17,868,793)

2,359,530

3,708,196

5,226,542

$

5,157,592

Going concern (Note 2)
The following notes are an integral part of these condensed interim consolidated financial statements
1

Bow Energy Ltd.
Condensed Interim Consolidated Statement of Loss and Other Comprehensive Loss
For the three and nine months ended December 31,
Unaudited (Expressed in Canadian dollars)
For the three months ended
December 31,
2017
2016

Notes

Expenses
General and administrative
Exchange (gain) loss

$

133,619
13,639

$

88,226
5,280

For the nine months ended
December 31,
2017
2016

$

666,241
(30,406)

$

284,162
5,280

147,258

93,506

635,835

289,442

6

(147,258)
(67,862)
(1,589)

(93,506)
(26,792)
(172)

(635,835)
(142,282)
(5,747)

(289,442)
(76,103)
(516)

13

(216,709)
—

(120,472)
498,756

(783,864)
(83,243)

(366,061)
(1,240,419)

Net loss for the period

(216,709)

378,286

(867,107)

(1,606,480)

Other comprehensive income (loss)
Exchange differences on translating foreign
operations

(486,675)

142,983

(653,199)

521,269

$ (1,520,306)

Income (loss) before interest, income taxes,
and depreciation
Interest and financing costs
Depreciation
Net loss from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations

Other comprehensive loss for the period

Loss per share from continuing operations
Income (loss) per share from discontinued
operations

10
10

194,166

$

(703,384)

$

$ (1,412,314)

$

(0.00)

$

(0.00)

$

(0.01)

$

(0.00)

$

(0.00)

$

0.01

$

(0.00)

$

(0.01)

The following notes are an integral part of these condensed interim consolidated financial statements
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Bow Energy Ltd.
Condensed Interim Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the nine months ended December 31,
Unaudited (Expressed in Canadian dollars)

Balance, April 1, 2016
Share based payments (Note 10)
Debt issuance costs
Exchange difference on translating foreign
operations
Net loss for period
Balance, December 31, 2016
Balance, April 1, 2017
Share based payments (Note 10)
Exchange difference on translating foreign
operations
Net loss for period
Balance, December 31, 2017

Share Capital
$ 17,649,200
—
—

Contributed
surplus
$ 2,906,663
62,012
—

—
—
$ 17,649,200

14,505
—
2,983,180

$ 17,649,200
—
—
—
$ 17,649,200

$
$

$

3,025,869
171,640
—
—
3,197,509

Accumulated
other
comprehensive
income (loss)
$
571,714
—
—

$
$

$

Deficit
$ (16,590,364)
—
—

$

Total Equity
4,537,214
62,012
14,505

194,166
—
765,880

—
(1,606,480)
$ (18,196,844)

194,166
(1,606,480)
$ 3,201,417

901,920
—

$ (17,868,793)
—

$

(653,199)
—
248,721

—
(867,107)
$ (18,735,900)

$

3,708,196
171,640
(653,199)
(867,107)
2,359,530

The following notes are an integral part of these condensed interim consolidated financial statements
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Bow Energy Ltd.
Condensed Interim Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the nine months ended December 31,
Unaudited (Expressed in Canadian dollars)
Notes
Operating
Loss for the period
Adjustments for:
Loss from discontinued operations
Accretion
Depreciation
Unrealized exchange gain
Share-based payments
Changes in
Trade and other receivables
Prepaid expenses
Trade and other payables

2017
$

13
9
6

(867,017)

2016
$

83,241
5,835
5,747
(30,406)
171,640

10

(1,606,479)
1,240,419
3,668
516
—
62,012

8,920
(31,212)
176,524
(476,728)

(3,298)
—
(268,620)

Operating cash flows used for continuing operations
Operating cash flows from discontinued operations

2,184,674

1,409,940

Cash flows from operating activities

1,707,946

838,158

Financing
Proceeds from related party note payable
Repayment of notes payable
Interest on notes payable
Proceeds from notes payable

11
9
9

Cash flows from (used for) financing activities

(571,782)

47,000
(362,010)
5,779
100,000

—
—
17,860
475,700

(209,231)

493,560

Investing
Additions to oil and gas property and equipment
Advances to joint venture

6

(18,552)

Acquisition of exploration and evaluation assets

5

(157,330)
(1,072,049)

(820,750)
—

(1,247,932)

(820,750)

Cash flows used for investing activities
Net increase in cash
Foreign exchange effect on cash held in foreign currencies
Cash, beginning of the period
Cash, end of the period

—

250,783
(288,991)
43,623
$

5,415

510,968
20,907
55,538
$

587,412

Supplemental cash flow (Note 12)
The following notes are an integral part of these condensed interim consolidated financial statements
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BOW ENERGY LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the three and nine months ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
Unaudited (Expressed in Canadian dollars)
1.

NATURE OF OPERATIONS
On January 24, 2017 ACL International Ltd. amended its name to Bow Energy Ltd. (the “Company” or “Bow”). The Company is an
Alberta, Canada corporation with common shares listed on the TSX Venture Exchange under the trading symbol “ONG”. The
Company’s principal office is located at 16th Floor, 205 – 5 Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta T2P 2V7.
On June 30, 2015 TSX Venture Exchange accepted the Company’s application for a change of business from a general insurance
brokerage issuer to an oil and gas issuer. In addition, the Company met the requirements to be listed as a TSX Venture Tier 1 issuer.
Effective July 2, 2015, the listing of the Company's shares was transferred from the NEX to the TSX Venture exchange. The
Company is now engaged in the exploration and development of and production of oil and natural gas in Indonesia.

2.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND GOING CONCERN
These interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting. They do
not include all disclosures that would otherwise be required in a complete set of financial statements and should be read in conjunction
with the 2017 annual report.
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with IFRS which contemplates the
Company will continue in operation for the foreseeable future and be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities and
commitments in the normal course of business.
Going Concern

3.

The Company incurred a net loss of $867,107 from continuing operations for the nine months ended December 31, 2017 and as of that
date the Company’s accumulated deficit was $18,735,900. The Company’s Langsa TAC asset expired in May 2017, which has been
the Company’s primary source of cash and only source of revenue. The Company no longer has any oil and gas assets in production.
During the exploration stage, the recoverability of the costs incurred to date on exploration properties is dependent upon the existence
of economically recoverable reserves, the ability of the Company to obtain the necessary financial resources to complete the
exploration and development of its properties and upon future profitable production or proceeds from the disposition of the properties
and deferred exploration expenditures. The Company will periodically have to raise funds to continue operations and, although it has
been successful in doing so in the past, there is no assurance it will be able to do so in the future. These factors give rise to a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Bow Energy Ltd. applies the same accounting policies and methods of computation in its interim consolidated financial statements as
in its 2017 annual financial statements, unless otherwise stated below. None of the new standards, interpretations, and amendments,
effective for the first time from 1 January 2017, have had a material effect on the financial statements.
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in compliance with IFRS requires management to make certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgment in applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment of complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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BOW ENERGY LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the three and nine months ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
Unaudited (Expressed in Canadian dollars)
3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Oil and natural gas exploration, evaluation, and development expenditure
Oil and natural gas exploration, evaluation and development expenditure is accounted for using the successful efforts method of
accounting.
(i) Pre-licence costs
Pre-licence costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
(ii) Licence and property acquisition costs
Exploration licence and leasehold property acquisition costs are capitalised in intangible assets.
Licence and property acquisition costs are reviewed at each reporting date to confirm that there is no indication that the carrying
amount exceeds the recoverable amount. This review includes confirming that exploration drilling is still under way or firmly planned,
or that it has been determined, or work is under way to determine that the discovery is economically viable based on a range of
technical and commercial considerations and that sufficient progress is being made on establishing development plans and timing.
If no future activity is planned or the licence has been relinquished or has expired, the carrying value of the licence and property
acquisition costs are written off through the statement of income (loss) and other comprehensive income (loss). Upon recognition of
proved reserves and internal approval for development, the relevant expenditure is transferred to oil and gas properties.
(iii) Exploration and evaluation costs
Exploration and evaluation activity involves the search for hydrocarbon resources, the determination of technical feasibility and the
assessment of commercial viability of an identified resource.
Once the legal right to explore has been acquired, costs directly associated with an exploration well are capitalised as exploration and
evaluation intangible assets until the drilling of the well is complete and the results have been evaluated. These costs include directly
attributable employee remuneration, materials and fuel used, rig costs and payments made to contractors.
Geological and geophysical costs are recognised in the statement of income (loss) and other comprehensive income (loss), as incurred.
If no potentially commercial hydrocarbons are discovered, the exploration asset is written off through the statement of income (loss)
and other comprehensive income (loss) as a dry hole. If extractable hydrocarbons are found and, subject to further appraisal activity
(e.g., the drilling of additional wells), it is probable that they can be commercially developed, the costs continue to be carried as an
intangible asset while sufficient/continued progress is made in assessing the commerciality of the hydrocarbons. Costs directly
associated with appraisal activity undertaken to determine the size, characteristics and commercial potential of a reservoir following
the initial discovery of hydrocarbons, including the costs of appraisal wells where hydrocarbons were not found, are initially
capitalised as an intangible asset.
All such capitalised costs are subject to technical, commercial and management review, as well as review for indicators of impairment
at least once a year. This is to confirm the continued intent to develop or otherwise extract value from the discovery. When this is no
longer the case, the costs are written off through the statement of income (loss) and other comprehensive income (loss).
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BOW ENERGY LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the three and nine months ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
Unaudited (Expressed in Canadian dollars)
3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
When proved reserves of oil and natural gas are identified and development is sanctioned by management, the relevant capitalised
expenditure is first assessed for impairment and (if required) any impairment loss is recognised, then the remaining balance is
transferred to oil and gas properties. Other than licence costs, no amortisation is charged during the exploration and evaluation phase.
For exchanges/swaps or parts of exchanges/swaps that involve only exploration and evaluation assets, the exchange is accounted for
at the carrying value of the asset given up and no gain or loss is recognised.
(iv) Development costs
Expenditure on the construction, installation, or completion of infrastructure facilities such as platforms, pipelines and the drilling of
development wells, including unsuccessful development or delineation wells, is capitalized within oil and gas properties.
(iv) Farm-outs — in the exploration and evaluation phase
The Company does not record any expenditure made by the farmee on its account. It also does not recognise any gain or loss on its
exploration and evaluation farm-out arrangements, but redesignates any costs previously capitalised in relation to the whole interest as
relating to the partial interest retained. Any cash consideration received directly from the farmee is credited against costs previously
capitalised in relation to the whole interest with any excess accounted for by the farmor as a gain on disposal.

4.

USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
There have been no material revisions to the nature and amount of changes in estimates or judgements of amounts reported in the
annual financial statements 2017.
Business combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. The determination of fair value often requires
management to make assumptions and estimates about future events. The assumptions and estimates with respect to determining the
fair value of property, plant, and equipment, and exploration and evaluation assets acquired generally require the most judgment and
include estimates of reserves acquired, forecast benchmark commodity prices, and discount rates. Changes in any of the assumptions
or estimates used in determining the fair value of acquired assets and liabilities could impact the amounts assigned to assets, liabilities
in the purchase price allocation, and any resulting gain or goodwill. Future net earnings can be affected as a result of changes in
future depletion, depreciation and accretion, and asset impairments.
The Company applied judgement in accounting for the acquisition of the five entities discussed in detail in note 5. The production
sharing contracts owned by the subsidiaries are all at a similar stage of development. The joint study agreement is at an even earlier
stage. The Company has made the judgement that although these entities are operational, there are no inputs as the entity is in the
exploration stage and many of the employees were terminated as part of the asset acquisition. At the time of the acquisition, there was
an exploration program in place, but no processes in place to convert the inputs and no production plans. Given all of these factors, the
Company has made the judgement that the purchase of these entities lacked the business elements required to be considered as a
business combination and the asset acquisition method has been applied.
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BOW ENERGY LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the three and nine months ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
Unaudited (Expressed in Canadian dollars)
5.

ACQUISITION OF EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS
On May 24, 2017, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, Bow Energy International Holdings Inc. (“BEIH”), acquired all of Bukit
Energy Inc.’s shareholding interests (the “Subsidiary Shares”) in five Singapore holding companies (the “Holding Companies”) that
own the interests in four Production Sharing Contracts (“PSCs”) and one non-conventional joint study agreement (“JSA”), all
interests are located onshore in Sumatra, Indonesia. The Holding Companies being acquired were Bukit Energy Central Sumatra
(Mahato) Pte. Ltd. (“Mahato”), Bukit Energy Palmerah Baru Pte. Ltd. (“Palmerah Baru”), Bukit Energy Resources Palmerah Deep
Pte. Ltd. (“Palmerah Deep”), Bukit Energy Bohorok Pte. Ltd. (“Bohorok”), and Bukit Energy Resources North Sumatra Pte. Ltd.
(“Bohorok Deep”), collectively referred to as the “Bukit assets”.
The Holding Companies being acquired by BEIH own the following interests in the conventional and non-conventional PSCs and
non-conventional JSA:
●
●
●
●
●

Bohorok PSC (conventional) – operated 50% participating interest, 465,266 net acres
Palmerah Baru PSC (conventional) – operated 54% participating interest, 98,977 net acres
Palmerah Deep PSC (non-conventional)- operated 69.36% participating interest, 170,398 net acres
Mahato PSC (conventional)- 20% participating interest, 167,115 net acres, non-operated
Bohorok Deep (non-conventional)- 20.25% participating interest in a JSA, non-operated with option to become operator

Assets were purchased for a total of USD $1,967,494 for a total CDN purchase price of $2,648,247. The Company paid an initial
amount of $1,072,049 (USD $796,470), assumed liabilities of $819,945 (USD $609,172), issued a note payable of $673,000 (USD
$500,000) which is due and payable on December 31, 2017 and had closing costs of $83,253.
The purchase price allocation can be summarized as follows:
Cash
Trade and other receivables
Prepaid expenses and deposits
Exploration and evaluation assets

$

724
24,775
421,455
2,201,293

$

2,648,247

The fair values of identifiable assets acquired as reported in the table above were estimated based on information available at the time
of preparation of these interim condensed consolidated financial statements. Actual amounts recognized by the Company once the
acquisition accounting is finalized may differ materially from these estimates.
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BOW ENERGY LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the three and nine months ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
Unaudited (Expressed in Canadian dollars)
6.

OIL AND GAS PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Cost
As at April 1, 2016
Foreign currency translation change
Cost as at March 31, 2017
Additions
Abandonment
Foreign currency translation change
Cost as at December 31, 2017
Accumulated depletion and depreciation
As at April 1, 2016
Charge for the period
Impairment
Foreign currency translation change
Accumulated depletion and depreciation as at March 31, 2017
Charge for the period
Abandonment
Foreign currency translation change
Accumulated depletion and depreciation as at December 31,
2017
Net book value as at March 31, 2017
Net book value as at December 31, 2017

Development
and
production
assets
$
11,508,629
300,780
$
11,809,409
—
(10,925,700)
(883,709)
$
—

$

$

$
$
$

8,628,185
2,581,201
16,425
261,912
11,487,723
325,046
(11,809,409)
(3,360)
—
321,686
—

Other Assets
4,591
—
$
4,591
18,553
—
—
$
23,144
$

$

$
$

$

Total
11,513,220
300,780
11,814,000
18,553
(10,925,700)
(883,709)
23,144

1,263
688
—
—
1,951
5,747
—
—

$

$

7,698

$

7,698

$
$

2,640
15,446

$
$

324,326
15,446

$

$

8,629,448
2,581,889
16,425
261,912
11,489,674
330,793
(11,809,409)
(3,360)

The depletion calculation for the period ended December 31, 2017 included estimated future development costs of $nil (2016: nil) for
proved and probable reserves.
Langsa TAC
In May of 2017, the Company’s licence for the Langsa TAC block expired and was not renewed by the government, consequently, the
asset reverted back to the government and for accounting purposes is considered abandoned.
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BOW ENERGY LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the three and nine months ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
Unaudited (Expressed in Canadian dollars)
7.

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE
The Company’s investment in REE has been accounted for as a joint venture. The Company has joint control over the strategic
financial and operating decisions of REE, but no single venturer has the ability to control the relevant activities of REE unilaterally
and the parties have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
The following is summarized financial information for REE as at December 31, 2017, based on its financial statements prepared in
accordance with IFRS.
Revenue
Profit from continuing operations
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

$

Current assets (i)
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Net assets

$

$

—
—
—
—

5,651
9,484,856
(304,039)
—
9,186,468

(i) Includes cash of $686
As part of the acquisition of REE, the Company acquired loans receivable of $690,862 and subsequently advanced additional funds
bringing total advances to $2,049,605. These advances are non-interest bearing. As part of the REE shareholder’s agreement, all
after-tax proceeds from the operations of SBA are first used to repay the shareholder’s loans, prior to any distributions relative to each
party’s share interests. As at December 31, 2017, SBA had not reached technical feasibility or commercial viability and as such the
amounts remain outstanding.
On September 23, 2016, PT. Prosys Oil and Gas International (“POGI”) defaulted on a cash call requirement to fund SBA as part of
its 14% working interest. The deadline to remedy the default was on October 23, 2016. As of March 31, 2017, the default has not
been remedied and REE and KRX Energy (SBA) Pte Ltd. are taking steps to transfer POGI’s interest in SBA in the following
proportions: REE: 8.3% and KRX Energy (SBA) Pte Ltd. 5.7%. The proportionate interests in SBA are now: 59.3% for REE and
40.7% for Lion.
8.

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

Cost as at April 1, 2017
Acquisition of Bukit assets (Note 5)
Additions
Foreign currency translation change
Cost as at December 31, 2017

Bohorok
—
1,181,551
—
(80,321)
1,101,230

Palmerah
Baru
—
477,049
—
(32,429)
444,620

Palmerah
Deep
—
235,712
—
(16,024)
219,688

Mahato
—
306,981
—
(20,868)
286,113

Total
—
2,201,293
—
(149,642)
2,051,651
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BOW ENERGY LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the three and nine months ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
Unaudited (Expressed in Canadian dollars)
9.

NOTES PAYABLE

Promissory note (i)
Promissory note (ii)
Bukit Energy Inc.(iii)
Credit note (iv)

Nominal
interest rate
12%
12%
8.5%
9%

Date of
maturity
31/3/2018
31/3/2018
31/3/2018
Note 9(v)

December 31, 2017
Carrying
Face value
amount
$ 48,498
$ 51,416
47,000
48,437
633,738
662,441
880,307
880,307

March 31, 2017
Carrying
Face value
amount
$ 48,498
$ 49,230
—
—
1,197,900

1,192,065

$1,609,543

$1,246,398

$1,241,295

$1,642,601

The promissory notes are repayable in full on maturity. The difference between the face value and carrying amount is attributed to
accrued interest.
(i) The note matured on December 31, 2017 and was subsequently extended until September 30, 2018. The note is currently in default
and carries interest at 12% per annum.
(ii) On June 29, 2017, the Company issued a note payable to a related party in receipt for $47,000. The note matured on December 31,
2017 and was subsequently extended until September 30, 2018. The note is currently in default and carries interest at 12% per annum.
(iii) In conjunction with the close of the purchase of the Bukit assets, the Company issued a note payable to Bukit Energy Inc. of USD
$500,000 with interest at the rate of 8.5% per annum, calculated monthly, not in advance, on the principal amount. The note matured
on August 31, 2017. The note was extended to December 15, 2017 and is currently in default.
(iv) On October 26, 2016, the Company entered into Amended and Restated Loan Agreement (“the Agreement”) with the lender. Under
the amendment, the interest rate increased from 6.75% to 9% per annum and extended the maturity date to July 14, 2017. The lender
advanced a further USD $355,000 with a maturity date of January 7, 2017. The face value of the note in USD as at December 31, 2017
was USD $700,000 (March 31, 2017: USD $900,000). The credit note is secured by a general security agreement over the assets of the
Company. Interest is paid monthly. In addition, the Company granted 320,000 warrants to the lender for the right to purchase common
shares, of the Company at $0.10 per share. Interest is paid monthly and is recorded at 9% on the full amount of the original issued
notes of USD $1,100,000.
The warrants expire on the date of repayment of the loan. The Company has fair valued the cost of the warrants using a Black Scholes
model and recorded a discount on the debt of $14,505 with an offset to contributed surplus. The following assumptions were used in
calculating the warrant value under the Black Scholes model: 0% forfeiture rate, measurement price of $0.08, which was the closing
price of BOW stock at the date of the grant, risk free rate of 0.56%, an expected term of 0.72 years, dividend yield equal to 0% and
volatility of 203% based on the Company’s stock history. The discount is being amortized over the term of the debt. During the nine
months ended December 31, 2017, the Company recorded an accretion expense of $5,835 (2016: $nil) related to this debt.
The Agreement date of maturity was extended. USD $200,000 is due and payable on September 15, 2017 and USD $600,000 is due
and payable on December 31, 2017. The Company repaid $262,010 (USD $200,000) during the period. The note was subsequently
transferred to Petrolia Energy Corporation as part of the merger as described in the subsequent event note 12.
(v) On June 13, 2017, the Company issued a note payable in receipt for $100,000. The note was repaid in full during the period.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the three and nine months ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
Unaudited (Expressed in Canadian dollars)
10.

SHARE CAPITAL
Per share amounts
Nine months ended
Weighted average number of shares – basic:
Issued common shares as at April 1
Effect of common shares issued during the period
Loss per share from continuing operations
Income (loss) per share from discontinued operations

December 31,
2017

December 31,
2016

92,310,184
—

92,310,184
—

92,310,184
(0.00)
(0.00)

92,310,184
(0.00)
(0.01)

$

$

Share-based payments
The Company has adopted an incentive stock option plan whereby the maximum number of shares reserved for issue under the plan
shall not exceed 10% of the total number of issued and outstanding common shares of the Company from time to time on a nondiluted basis. The Company received share exchange approval for the issuance of options greater than 10% of the plan.
Changes in share options during the periods ended December 31, 2017 and March 31, 2017 are as follows:

Outstanding, beginning of year
Granted
Forfeited
Outstanding, end of the year

December 31, 2017
Weighted
Number of
average
options
exercise price

Number of
options

8,517,658
2,200,000
(1,917,658)
8,800,000

6,117,658
3,100,000
(700,000)
8,517,658

$
$
$

0.12
0.12
—
0.12

March 31, 2017
Weighted
average exercise
price
$
$
$

0.12
0.12
—
0.12

The weighted average remaining life of the options is 3.62 years. As at December 31, 2017, 4,090,000 of options were exercisable.
The Company recorded a share-based payment of $171,640 for the period ended December 31, 2017 (nine months ended December
31, 2016: $62,012).
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Unaudited (Expressed in Canadian dollars)
11.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company enters into transactions with related parties from time to time in the normal course of business, as well as key
management personnel.
On May 30, 2016 an Officer of the Corporation granted an unsecured loan, which carries interest at 12% per annum in the amount of
$58,000 for general working capital. The note matures on July 29, 2016. The above transaction was in the normal course of business
and was at terms agreed to by the related parties. The carrying value of the note as at September 30, 2016 is $58,572; The amount was
repaid on September 3, 2016. The difference between the face value and carrying amount is attributed to accrued interest. The officer
extended the maturity date to September 15th, subsequent to the period end.
On June 29, 2017, the Company issued a note payable to an Officer in receipt for $47,000. The note matured on December 31, 2017,
was extended to March 31, 2018 and carries interest at 12% per annum.
Compensation of key management personnel
Key management personnel are comprised of all members of the Board of Directors and the Named Officers (as defined in Form 51102F6 Statement of Executive compensation and disclosed in the Company’s Management Proxy Circular in connection with its
annual meeting of shareholders). The summary of the compensation of key management personnel is as follows:

Nine months ended
Salary and bonuses
Share based payments
Total compensation of key management personnel

$
$

December 31,
2017
315,000
171,640
486,640

$
$

December 31,
2016
85,428
62,012
147,440

Share based payments were composed of expenses related to stock options. 2,200,000 shares were issued to officers of the Company
on a 5 year term at an option price of $0.12 on September 1, 2017; 50% vested immediately and the remaining 50% vest on the
anniversary of the grant.
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12.

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
During the nine months ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company had non-cash transactions as follows:
2017

Operating activities
Trade and other receivables acquired
Prepaid expenses acquired
Trade and other payables acquired

Financing activities
Promissory note issued for asset acquisition

Investing activities
Intangible assets acquired

Additional information
Interest paid
Income taxes paid
13.

2016

$

(24,748)
(421,455)
897,340

$

—
—
—

$

451,137

$

673,000

$

—

$

673,000

$

—

—

$

(1,124,137)

$

—

$

(1,124,137)

$

—

$
$

62,109
—

$
$

64,265
—

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
On May of 2017, the Company’s licence for the Langsa TAC block expired and was not renewed by the government, consequently,
the Company has ceased production of oil and the asset was abandoned.
To conform with current period classification of the discontinued operations, prior year results have been reclassified to discontinued
operations.
Results of discontinued operations are as follows:

Nine months ended
Revenue
Oil and gas expenditures
Exchange gain
Depletion
Loss from discontinued operations

2017
$

$

866,686
(638,438)
311
(311,802)
(83,243)

2016
$

$

4,082,849
(3,590,247)
133,984
(1,844,358)
(1,217,772)
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14.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On December 8, 2017, the Company announced that it has signed a definitive agreement for Petrolia Energy Corporation(“Petrolia”)
(BBLS:OTCBB), to acquire Bow (the “Acquisition”). The Agreement sets out the terms and conditions pursuant to which Petrolia
will acquire through an all-stock transaction the entire issued and outstanding common shares of Bow. Bow will distribute the
common shares of Petrolia it receives to Bow shareholders who will receive shares of Petrolia on the basis of 1.15 Petrolia shares for
each common share held in Bow. Bow warrant holders will be entitled to receive, upon exchange of their securities, the equivalent
number of Petrolia warrants. Following the completion of the Arrangement, Bow will be a wholly owned subsidiary of Petrolia.
On February 27, 2018, the Acquisition closed and Petrolia acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares of capital stock of Bow
(each a “Bow Share”). The Arrangement was approved at a special meeting of shareholders of Bow held on February 21, 2018. Final
approval of the Arrangement was granted by the Court of Queen’s Bench of Alberta (the “Court”) on February 23, 2018.
Under the terms of the Arrangement, Bow shareholders are deemed to have received 1.15 Petrolia common stock shares for each
Bow Share. A total of 106,156,712 shares of the Company’s common stock were issued to the Bow shareholders as a result of the
Arrangement, plus additional shares in connection with the rounding described below. The Arrangement provided that no fractional
shares would be issued in connection with the Arrangement, and instead, each Bow shareholder otherwise entitled to a fractional
interest would receive the nearest whole number of Company shares. For example, where such fractional interest is greater than or
equal to 0.5, the number of shares to be issued would be rounded up to the nearest whole number and where such fractional interest is
less than 0.5, the number of shares to be issued would be rounded down to the nearest whole number. In calculating such fractional
interests, all shares issuable in the name of or beneficially held by each Bow shareholder or their nominee as a result of the
Arrangement shall be aggregated.
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Petrolia Energy Corporation 8-K/A
Exhibit 99.3
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
On November 30, 2017, Petrolia Energy Corporation signed an Arrangement Agreement (the “Agreement”) to acquire all of the issued and
outstanding shares in Bow Energy Ltd (“Bow”), which is listed on the TSX Venture Exchange under the symbol ONG.V., with corporate
offices located in Calgary, Alberta, Canada and Jakarta, Indonesia, pursuant to a “plan of arrangement” (the “Arrangement”) under section
193 of the Business Corporations Act (Alberta) (the “Acquisition”). Petrolia acquired Bow to further its business objectives of acquiring
exploration properties.
On February 27, 2018, the Acquisition closed, and Petrolia Energy Corporation acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares in Bow
Energy Ltd. Bow shareholders received 106,156,712 shares of the Company’s common stock and assumed 320,000. The fair value of the
106,156,712 common shares issued as part of the consideration paid for Bow ($34,607,088) was determined based on the closing market
price of the Company’s common shares on the acquisition date.
Bow’s wholly owned subsidiary, Bow Energy International Holdings Inc. (“BEIH”) holds interests in several entities.
BEIH has a 100% interest in Bow Energy Pte. Ltd. (“BEPL”), BEPL owns 75% of the issued and outstanding shares of Renco Elang
Energy Pte. Ltd. (“REE”) which owns a 75% working interest in a Production Sharing Contract referred to as “South Block A” (“SBA”)
located onshore, North Sumatra, Indonesia. REE is the operator of SBA. Effectively, the Company has a 44.48% working interest in SBA.
BEIH also holds interests in five Singapore holding companies (the “Holding Companies”) that own the interests in four Production
Sharing Contracts (“PSCs”) and one non-conventional joint study agreement (“JSA”), all interests are located onshore in Sumatra,
Indonesia. The Holding Companies include Bukit Energy Central Sumatra (Mahato) Pte. Ltd. (“Mahato”), Bukit Energy Palmerah Baru
Pte. Ltd. (“Palmerah Baru”), Bukit Energy Resources Palmerah Deep Pte. Ltd. (“Palmerah Deep”), Bukit Energy Bohorok Pte. Ltd.
(“Bohorok”), and Bukit Energy Resources North Sumatra Pte. Ltd. (“Bohorok Deep”).
•
•
•
•
•

Bohorok PSC (conventional) – operated 50% participating interest, 465,266 net acres;
Palmerah Baru PSC (conventional) – operated 54% participating interest, 98,977 net acres;
Palmerah Deep PSC (non-conventional)- operated 69.36% participating interest, 170,398 net acres;
Mahato PSC (conventional)- 20% participating interest, 167,115 net acres, non-operated;
Bohorok Deep (non-conventional)- 20.25% participating interest in a JSA, non-operated with option to become operator.

The following unaudited pro-forma condensed combined financial statements are based on our historical consolidated financial statements
and Bow’s historical consolidated financial statements adjusted to give effect to he Company’s acquisition of Bow. The unaudited pro
forma condensed combined statements of operations for the
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements should be read together with the Company’s historical financial
statements, which are included in the Company’s latest annual report on Form 10-K and quarterly report on Form 10-Q, and Bow’s
historical information included herein.

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
As of December 31, 2017
Petrolia Energy
Corporation
Historical
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash
Accounts receivable
Other current assets
Total current assets

$

82,593
51,026
8,993
142,612

Bow Energy Ltd.
Historical
$

4,317
410,945
4,763
420,025

Property & equipment
Oil and gas, on the basis of full cost accounting
Evaluated properties
Unproved properties not subject to amortization
Furniture, equipment & software
Less accumulated depreciation
Net property and equipment

14,312,580
—
264,723
(1,192,229)
13,385,074

—
3,475,371
18,448
(6,136)
3,487,683

Other Assets
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Deposits
Total Assets

49,886
—
—
13,577,572

—
—
337,997
4,245,705

$

See accompanying notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information

Pro Forma
Adjustments Notes
$

533
(410,945)
—
(410,412)

—
6,230,219
—
—
6,230,219
—
26,927,369
—
$ 32,747,176

(d)
(c)

(d)

(d)

Pro Forma
Combined
$

87,443
51,026
13,756
152,225

14,312,580
9,705,590
283,171
(1,198,365)
23,102,976
49,886
26,927,369
337,997
$50,5570,453

LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Petrolia Energy
Corporation
Historical
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Notes payable
Note payable – related parties
Total current liabilities

$

Asset retirement obligations
Installment note payable
Note payable to related party – long term
Total Liabilities
Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred stock
Common stock
Additional paid in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive income
Accumulated deficit

Total Stockholders’ Equity
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

$

Bow Energy Ltd.
Historical

413,435
896,897
32,582
217,100
1,560,014

975,925
—
1,409,335
—
2,385,260

473,868
24,204
—
2,058,086

—
—
—
2,385,260

197
111,698

—
14,068,177

22,730,974

2,514,707

—
(11,323,383)

(48,207)
(14,674,232)

11,519,486
13,577,572

1,860,445
4,245,705

See accompanying notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information

Pro Forma
Adjustments Notes
$

181,951
—
19,857
—
201,808

(c)
(c)

—
—
—
201,808
—
100
106,157
(14,068,177)
36,900
34,500,931
(2,514,707)
103,632
48,207
(37,000)
14,674,232
(201,275)
(103,632)
32,545,368
$ 32,747,176

Pro Forma
Combined
$

1,571,311
896,897
1,461,774
217,100
4,147,082
473,868
24,204
—
4,645,154

(a)
(d)
(a)
(d)
(d)
(b)
(d)
(a)
(d)
(c)
(b)
`

197
217,855
57,372,437

—
(11,665,290)

45,925,299
$ 50,570,453

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
Year Ended December 31, 2017

Oil and gas sales
Oil and gas sales
Total Revenue

Petrolia Energy
Corporation
Historical

Bow Energy Ltd.
Historical

Pro Forma
Adjustments Notes

$

$

$

Operating expenses
Lease operating expense
Production expenses
General and administrative expenses
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Impairment of goodwill
Asset retirement obligation accretion
Total operating expenses

416,232
—
2,550,481
74,469
—
49,753
3,090,935

Loss from operations
Other expenses
Interest and finance expense
Loss on exchange rate
Other income
Impairment of oil and gas properties
Loss on conversion of debt
Net loss

$

Series A Preferred Dividends

Weighted average shares

(201,275)

(265,813)

(140,026)

—
40,806
—
(94,177)

(1,209,034)
—
(12,513)
—

(37,000)
(103,632)
—
—
—
—

(3,261,284)

$

(3,355,763)
$

—
—
201,275
—
—
—
201,275

(61,271)

—

Comprehensive loss attributable to Common
Stockholders

—
—

(2,942,100)

(3,355,763)

Foreign currency translation adjustments

3,022,629
3,022,629
—
1,605,654
674,625
803,621
—
—
3,083,900

(94,479)

Net Loss Attributable to Common Stockholders

Basic and fully diluted loss per share

148,835
148,835

(1,422,844)
—
(1,422,844)
(36,313)
(1,459,157)

$

$

(3,204,646)
(a)
(b)

See accompanying notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information

(509,471)
(1,209,034)
40,806
(12,513)
(94,177)

(341,907)

$ (4,989,035)

—

(94,479)

(341,907)

(5,083,514)

—

(36,313)

(341,907)

(5,119,827)
$

106,156,712

3,171,464
3,171,464
416,232
1,605,654
3,426,381
878,090
—
49,753
6,376,110

(c)

(0.04)
93,545,807

Pro Forma
Combined

(f)

(0.03)
199,702,519

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
Year Ended December 31, 2016

Oil and gas sales
Oil and gas sales
Equipment sales to related party
Total Revenue

Petrolia Energy
Corporation
Historical

Bow Energy Ltd.
Historical

$

$

Operating expenses
Cost of equipment sold
Lease operating expense
Production expenses
General and administrative expenses
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Impairment of goodwill
Asset retirement obligation accretion
Total operating expenses
Loss from operations
Other expenses
Interest and finance expense
Gain on exchange rate
Other income
Loss on warrants issued for PORRI
Net loss

$

Series A Preferred Dividends

loss

attributable

Loss per share
Basic and fully diluted loss per share
Weighted average shares

—

4,409,563

—

4,532,809

33,330
304,199
—
1,433,182
74,065
—
38,998
1,883,774

—
—
3,707,066
298,305
1,409,660
—
—
5,415,031

—
—
—
—
—
—
—

304,199
3,707,066
1,731,487
1,483,725
—
38,998
7,265,475

(1,562,528)

(1,005,468)

—

(2,732,666)

(359,239)
—
60,324
(14,336)

(58,546)
880,758
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—

(417,785)
880,758
60,324
—
—
$ (2,209,369)

—

(94,479)

(183,256)

—

(2,303,848)

(11,894)

—

(11,894)

(195,150)

—

(2,315,742)

(1,875,779)

$

(1,970,258)

Foreign currency translation adjustments

—
to

Pro Forma
Combined

4,409,563

(94,479)

Net Loss Attributable to Common Stockholders

Comprehensive
Stockholders

123,246
198,000
321,246

Pro Forma
Adjustments Notes

(183,256)
—

$

$

4,532,809

Common
(1,970,258)
$

(0.04)

93,545,807
See accompanying notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information

$
106,156,712

(f)

(0.01)
199,702,519

Note 1. Basis of presentation
The historical consolidated financial statements have been adjusted in the pro forma condensed combined financial statements to give
effect to pro forma events that are (1) directly attributable to the business combination, (2) factually supportable and (3) with respect to the
pro forma condensed combined statements of operations, expected to have a continuing impact on the combined results following the
business combination.
The business combination was accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting in accordance with ASC Topic 805, Business
Combinations. As the acquirer for accounting purposes, the Company has estimated the fair value of Bow’s assets acquired and liabilities
assumed and conformed the accounting policies of Bow’s to its own accounting policies. Bow’s financials were previously prepared in
accordance with IFRS as issued by the IASB. US GAAP foreign currency adjustments are discussed in note 4.
The pro forma combined financial statements do not necessarily reflect what the combined company’s financial condition or results of
operations would have been had the acquisition occurred on the dates indicated. They also may not be useful in predicting the future
financial condition and results of operations of the combined company. The actual financial position and results of operations may differ
significantly from the pro forma amounts reflected herein due to a variety of factors.
Note 2. Preliminary purchase price allocation
The Company has performed a valuation analysis of the fair market value of Bow’s assets and liabilities. The following table summarized
the allocation of the preliminary purchase price as of the acquisition date.
Cash
Other current assets
Deposits
Furniture, equipment & software
Unproved properties and properties not subject to amortization
Goodwill
Accounts payable
Note payable

$

3,784
4,763
337,997
12,059
9,705,590
27,129,963
(1,157,876)
(1,429,192)

This preliminary purchase price allocation has been used to prepare pro forma adjustments in the pro forma balance sheet and income
statement.
Actual amounts recognized by the Company once the acquisition accounting is finalized may differ materially from these estimates. Fair
value of cash, other current assets, deposits, furniture, equipment & software, accounts payable, and note payable was fair valued at the
carrying value of Bow as this was this deemed to be the most accurate measure of fair value. Fair value assigned to properties, which
contain prospective oil and gas resources instead of reserves, was derived using market approach.
Note 3. Pro forma adjustments
(a) Represents the acquisition costs included a finder’s fee grant of 100,000 shares ($37,000) of common stock as a bonus for the Bow
Energy acquisition at a fair value of $0.37 per share;
(b) In addition, the Company incurred $103,632 in transaction costs associated with the issuance of 320,000 warrants in connection with
the transaction.
(c) Reflects the working capital adjustments based on the purchase price allocation as of the acquisition date as shown in Note 3.
(d) Represents the estimated adjustment of fair value to reflect a valuation allowance for accounts receivable of $410,945, Unproved
properties not subject to amortization of $6,230,219, with remaining fair value from the 106,156,712 common shares issued as part of
the consideration paid for Bow $34,607,088, allocated to Goodwill, $26,927,369.
(e) Reflects the income tax effect of pro forma adjustments based on the estimated blended federal and state statutory tax rate of 35%.
(f) Represents the increase in the weighted average shares in connection with the issuance of 106,156,712 common shares to finance the
acquisition.

Note 4. Foreign currency and US GAAP conversion adjustments
The historical financial information of Bow was prepared in accordance with IFRS and presented in Canadian dollars. The historical
information was translated from Canadian to US dollars using the following historical exchange rates.
Period end exchange rate as of December 31, 2017
Average exchange rate for the year ended December 31, 2017
Average exchange rate for the year ended December 31, 2016

CDN/USD
0.7971
0.7751
0.7640

US GAAP and IFRS were substantially converged on all statement of operations items. In order for the Bow statements to comply with
ASC 323.932, the Company has reclassified on the balance sheet of Bow advances and investment in joint ventures were proportionally
consolidated and the balance of $1,765,741 were reclassified to Unproved properties not subject to amortization.

